
 

 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 

(Constituted under Section 35 of the Civil Aviation Act 1982) 
 
 

A R Ward 

Solicitor and Honorary Secretary to the Committee 

Eastleigh House,  
Upper Market Street  

Eastleigh,  
Hampshire  SO50 9YN 

Telephone:  023 8068 8000 
Fax No:   023 8068 8122  

 

 

DATE: 17 June 2014 
 

 

Friday, 27 June 2014 
Spitfire Meeting Room Southampton International Airport 

AGENDA 
 

Prior to the start of the meeting there will be a short session (maximum 15 
minutes in total) giving the opportunity to relevant organisations, whose 
interests are not formally represented by a committee member, to speak.  
Those wishing to participate should telephone the above number in 
advance of the meeting to book a place. 

 
 
 

1. Election of Chair for 2014/15     
 
2. Election of Vice Chair for 2014/15     
 
3. Appointment of Honorary Secretary 2014/15     
 
4. Apologies for absence     
 
5. Minutes     
 
6. Airport Managing Director's Report    (Pages 1 - 10) 
 
7. Noise Action Plan Including Contours - Patrick Collins     
 
8. Airport Developments - Steve Thurston     
 
9. Airspace Consultation update - Iain McDermott Paine     
 
10. Airports Commission - Call for Evidence - Discussion Paper: Utilisation of the UK's 

Existing Airports Capacity     
 
11. Farnborough Airspace Change proposal     
 
12. Monitoring of the Flying Controls Agreement - Tony Wright    (Pages 11 - 16) 
 
13. Routings over Winchester - WCC/WAG     
 
14. Technical Working Group feedback    (Pages 17 - 22) 
 
15. New Airport Consultative Committee Guidelines - Richard Ward    (Pages 23 - 46) 
 



 

 

16. Feedback from UKACCS Conference June 2014 - Richard Ward/David Airey     
 
17. Date and time of next meeting      

 Friday 17 October 2014 Venue: The Airport  
  
 
 



 
 

CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 
 

Managing Director’s Report 
June 2014 

 
1. Total Passenger Numbers – January to April 
 
Between January and April 2014, Southampton Airport welcomed 478,883 passengers. 
 

 
 

  2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 

Jan 
          

95,791  
              

88,205  
        

98,633  
        

99,575  
        

95,001  
     

105,227  

Feb 
          

105,805  
             

100,776  
      

108,723  
      

104,013  
      

114,890  
      

108,536  

Mar 
          

129,115  
             

124,489  
      

127,946  
      

130,119  
      

142,473  
      

135,312  

Apr 
          

148,172  
             

136,765  
      

139,260  
      

143,672  
      

121,278  
      

150,447  

May 
                      
-    

             
157,691  

      
150,415  

      
157,942  

      
159,700  

      
163,889  

Jun 
                      
-    

             
169,317  

      
164,163  

      
177,482  

      
178,900  

      
172,533  

Jul 
                      
-    

             
188,780  

      
174,005  

      
192,336  

      
187,757  

      
190,453  

Aug 
                      
-    

             
195,225  

      
175,891  

      
187,869  

      
183,500  

      
185,281  

Sep  
                      
-    

             
174,167  

      
167,991  

      
175,733  

      
174,570  

      
174,501  

Oct 
                      
-    

             
145,813  

      
145,596  

      
152,015  

      
156,754  

      
155,188  

Nov 
                      
-    

             
125,950  

      
129,035  

      
124,417  

      
127,019  

      
131,251  

Dec 
                      
-    

             
115,811  

      
112,205  

      
117,285  

         
92,582  

      
118,645  

Total 
          

478,883  
         

1,722,989  
   

1,693,863  
   

1,762,458  
   

1,734,424  
   

1,791,263  

% 
change 6.4% 1.7% -3.9% 1.6% -3.2% 8.2% 

 

Agenda Item 6

1



 
 
2. Total Aircraft Movements -January to April 2014 
 
The aircraft movements at Southampton Airport decreased by 5.8% from January to April, when 
compared to the same time last year.  Total Aircraft Movements include: Passenger and Cargo 
Flights, Training Flights, Air Ambulance, General Aviation, Military, Air Taxi and Positioning 
Flights. 
 

 
 

 
Jan Feb Mar Apr Total 

% 
change 

2014 2660 2566 2973 3328 11527 
 2013 2835 2821 3236 3350 12242 -5.8% 

 
 
3. Airport & Airline News 
 
Flybe launches flights to Hamburg 
 
Southampton Airport has secured a brand new daily service to 
and from Hamburg, connecting these two important business 
centres for the first time.  Business experts in the region have 
warmly welcomed the addition to Southampton Airport’s 
offering.  The route will start on October 26th 2014 with Flybe.   
 
Dave Lees, Southampton Airport’s Managing Director said: 
“Hamburg is a city that has strong business links to Southampton. We know that there are 
growing cruise links between these two major European ports, and there are many aerospace and 
marine industry links in both regions. It is also very popular as a short break destination with lively 
nightlife, great shopping, restaurants and harbour tours. We are delighted that Flybe has chosen 
to start this important air link to Germany, which has been requested by many businesses in this 
region.” 
 
BBC Radio Solent – live broadcast 
 
Much-loved local station, BBC Radio Solent, will be broadcasting live from Southampton Airport 
on Friday 11th July.  The Katie Martin Show will be soaking up the summer atmosphere at the 
airport, talking to passengers and delving into the daily operations such as pilot checks, baggage 
handling and check-in. The show will be broadcast from 1pm – 4pm.  

2



Flybe boosts flight schedules 
 
Flybe has boosted its summer schedule by adding another two flights a week to Clermont-Ferrand 
from Southampton Airport, meaning that customers now have more choice during the peak 
summer months.  The service runs on Wednesdays, Saturdays and Sundays.  
 
Flybe has also confirmed that its popular sun routes from Southampton to Alicante, Malaga and 
Faro have been extended to operate through to early November, to accommodate half-term 
travel. Increased flights to Dublin will operate during winter up to four times a day, and routes to 
regional France will also receive a winter boost with the addition of a twice weekly service to La 
Rochelle.  Those looking to visit some of Europe’s best ski slopes will also be pleased to hear of 
the return of Flybe’s flights to Grenoble, Geneva and Chambery. 
 
Southampton Airport voted Top UK Airport 
 
Southampton Airport has been awarded the title of ‘Top UK Airport’ in the 
2014 Wanderlust Readers’ Travel Awards.  Southampton Airport topped the 
chart of UK airports with an impressive satisfaction rating of 87.5%. Final 
positions were based on an average score for the entry, converted to a 
percentage – meaning that the award was based on all-important 
satisfaction levels rather than the number of votes.  
 
New Southampton Airport website     
 
We are excited to announce that the brand new Southampton Airport website is now live – take a 
look around!  Not only has the site had a stunning visual makeover, customer service has been 
made a priority with an improved ‘Contact Us’ section, live Twitter feeds and super-simple 
navigation.  Our destination pages have also had an overhaul with in-depth destination guides, a 
new interactive map and inspirational photographs throughout the site. Our blog is now located 
within the website and it’s even easier for customers to book priority services, parking and flights. 
www.southamptonairport.com  
 
Carol Vorderman visits Southampton Airport 
 

TV personality Carol Vorderman made a flying visit to Southampton 
Airport in her Diamond DA40 as part of her campaign to fly around 
the world in 2015. The former Countdown presenter and ‘Loose 
Woman’ started training to become a pilot last year and plans to be 
the ninth woman in history to fly solo around the world. She visited 
Southampton to meet GPS firm, Garmin, to discuss plane navigation 
systems.   Carol said "We had a really warm welcome from everyone 
at Southampton Airport when we flew in with our small aircraft.  
The airport was really handy for our meeting about 10 minutes away 
by taxi…. a great day out" 

 
Flybe’s Brand New Purple World 
 
The new Flybe has landed!  The airline has unveiled a brand new look in 
celebration of their reinvigorated product offering.  
 
As part of the revamp, Flybe has launched a world-first 60:60 guarantee, 
a new-look website and their ticket options have been re-named.  
Improved on-board experiences feature the introduction of stylish purple 
crew uniforms and purple mood lighting, as well as daily on-board prize 
winners, a little gift when you arrive at your destination and an on-time 
musical celebration.  

3



4. Management & Staff 
 

Breeze Through Awards – January to May 2014 
At Southampton Airport we pride ourselves on helping make our passengers’ journey as easy as 
possible. Our Breeze Through Awards recognise and reward those staff who go the extra mile.  
 
January 2014: Lyn Cole – Airport Ambassador 
Lyn received a number of glowing compliments about her kindness and customer service 
throughout January. During weather disruptions, Lyn helped find several passengers 
accommodation and ordered taxis.  Lyn also assisted injured passengers returning from a 
snowboarding trip and looked after a lady and her 7 year old son who were returning to Jersey 
after the boy’s hospital treatment.  
 
February 2014: Ray Jones – Engineering  
When an issue threatened the operation of the airport in February, Ray, who was not on call for 
that particular weekend, was contacted to assist in getting the airport runway open. Ray took 
responsibility for redesigning the works himself and put in a fully compliant final solution. Ray’s 
prompt, unselfish action saved a considerable amount of cost from further works and allowed the 
airport to open on time.   
 
March 2014 – Disruption Response Team 
On 13th March, Flybe cancelled a number of flights due to fog and the airport received a number 
of diversion requests from other airports, then local roads became gridlocked with traffic.  
The new volunteer ‘Disruption Response Team’ (DRT) was activated and members Mike Glen, 
Nichola Shaw, Shona Hogg, Anthony Cleightonhills, Hazel Screech and Gay Roberts fell into 
natural roles. They assisted passengers both airside & landside, greatly reducing the queuing 
levels and customer complaints.  
 
April 2014: Neil MacBrayne - Swissport 
Neil was nominated by several staff members and has received great feedback from passengers. 
Neil has been witnessed by colleagues “always helping customers and always looking to go the 
extra mile”, “adopting a charming, disarming manner” with child passengers and “having a 
passion for service, in line with our airport values”.  Customers have congratulated him for his 
great customer care skills – with one person writing that it was “the best service we have ever 
had”.   
 
Leading safety expert visits Southampton Airport 
 
Southampton Airport invited Jason Anker – 
described as the UK’s leading speaker on 
behavioural safety training – to deliver six of his 
‘this is my story’ safety presentations. One hundred 
and thirty staff and airport business partners 
experienced a very emotive, thought provoking and 
attitude changing 90 minutes.  
 
Jason, who suffered a serious accident at work 
which left him paralysed from the waist down – 
talked about his experiences and at the end of each 
session individuals went forward to shake his hand 
and many left with tears in their eyes. The impact of the sessions could be felt around the airport 
in the following days.  If you would like to know more about Jason’s story, you will find short 
video clips on his web page. From this you may get an inkling of what is meant by “…it only takes 
5 seconds…”. www.p2bs.org  
 

4



Airport MD joins the board of the Solent LEP 
 
Dave Lees, Managing Director of Southampton Airport, has been elected to the board of the 
Solent Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP).  He was chosen by a vote of the LEP's business members 
after responding to a call for Solent business leaders working in aerospace, aviation, high-end 
manufacturing, logistics, ports and key international gateways. 
 
Dave fills the board seat vacated by former Southampton Port Director Doug Morrison when he 
retired at the end of 2013.  He joins a fully elected, private sector led board consisting of leaders 
from the Solent business, local authority and academic community. 
 
5. Noise 
 
Zero complaints were recorded in January and February 2014. 
 
6. Vortex 
 
There were no reported occurrences of vortex damage between January and April 2014. 
 

7. Community and charity 
 
New photo wall celebrates 50 years of Southampton as a city 

 
Southampton Airport has unveiled a brand new ‘welcome’ photo wall as 
part of the celebrations of the 50th anniversary of the city of 
Southampton. The airport commissioned Southampton Solent University 
photography student, James Robinson, to take images of people and 
iconic landmarks of the city.  The result is ‘Fifty’ - a stunning wall of fifty 
photos which is displayed in the arrivals area of the airport.    
 
‘Fifty’ features famous locations around Southampton such as the 
Mayflower Theatre, St Mary’s Stadium, Tudor House and the port. It’ll be 
seen by international passengers and local residents alike, providing a 
warm welcome to (or back to) the city. The wall was unveiled by The Right 
Worshipful the Mayor of Southampton, Councillor Mrs Sue Blatchford on 
11th June. 
 

Pavilion on the Park 
 
Pavilion on the Park in Eastleigh was the recipient of the Big Idea funding – a grant of £50,000 to 
make a significant difference to a community project. The funding has helped Pavilion on the 
Park to build a new outdoor activity building, opening on to Fleming Park.   The new 4all Hangar 
will provide storage for specialist cycles and a focal point for developing work skills, independent 
living skills and recreation & leisure experiences.  It opens officially on 16th July 2014.   
 
Charity Cycle Raises £400 
 
A team of nurses and healthcare assistants from the Ministry of 
Defence Hospital Unit brought a cycle challenge to Southampton 
Airport, to raise money for the Royal Air Force Benevolent Fund.  
The team – a mixture of Navy, Army and Air Force personnel from 
Queen Alexandra Hospital in Portsmouth – cycled an astonishing 
377 miles in just five hours on exercise bikes in the airport 
terminal.  Generous passengers donated more than £400 to the 
charity as a result of the incredible cycling challenge – which is the 
equivalent distance of a flight from Southampton to Dublin. 
 

5



Students Touch Down at Southampton Airport 
 
Two Bitterne Park Sixth Form students spent a week’s work experience at Southampton Airport in 
March.  Jack Atherton and Imogen Salter were selected to spend the week at the airport 
following successful interviews with the Head of Human Resources at the airport.  Imogen and 
Jack, who study A-Level BTEC Diploma Travel & Tourism and Business Studies, had the opportunity 
to experience many different departments throughout the airport during their week. The 
students were able to work with Security, Airport Duty Manager, Airside Operations and 
Marketing. 
 
Music in the Air returns to Southampton Airport 
 
Friday evenings at Southampton Airport are being given a musical twist this summer as the 
airport plays host to a series of short musical performances by talented local musicians.  Music in 
the Air is a collaboration between Southampton Music Service (the lead organisation for the 
Southampton Music Hub) and Southampton Airport. It’ll see a range of musicians from 
saxophonists to acoustic rock bands, youth swing groups and electric string acts entertain 
passengers as they arrive and depart. 
 
Community Fund  
 
The Southampton Airport Community Fund has welcomed a new panel, responsible for awarding 
grants to projects in the local community.  The trust board is now comprised of: Jan Halliday from 
Southampton Airport - the chair of the board, Caroline Nicholls – director of the Communities 
Trust, Nick Tustian of Eastleigh Borough Council, Stuart Love of Southampton City Council and 
Graham Salmon of Flybe along with Louise Neville, Maggie Blight and Linda Rogers of 
Southampton Airport. 
 
8. Customer Service 
 
Southampton Airport has started positively in 2014 in customer service.  For helpfulness of staff 
the airport scored 4.33 out of maximum of 5, which places us in the top 3 in Europe for this 
category for Q1 2014.  We are hoping to maintain these high scores to be first in Europe again.  
 
Our security staff and check in staff also scored highly for helpfulness of staff.  For overall 
passenger satisfaction for Q1 2014, we scored 4.12, placing us once again in the Top 10 for overall 
passenger satisfaction in Europe. This data is taken from the scores from those airports that are 
part of the Airport Service Quality (ASQ) benchmarking programme, of which there are 228 
participating airports. 
 
9. Online & Social Media 
 

Twitter 
The account has reached over 21,000 followers and has proved invaluable for providing instant 
updates in times of disruption, is followed by local media and is being used as a customer services 
tool.  To follow the airport, go to www.twitter.com/sou_airport  
 
Facebook 
Our Facebook page continues to grow and our engagement with fans is significantly higher than 
most other regional airports. Through competitions, surveys and photo sharing the number of 
‘likes’ now sits at over 3,800. www.facebook.com/sou.airport  
 
Blog 
Our blog has entries including top tips, ‘tried and tested’ things to do, places to go in our 
destinations and closer to home here in Hampshire. We are developing our ‘Day in the life’ 
features to give more ‘behind the scenes’ insights to working life at the airport. 
 
6



10. Dates for your diary 

 

Next Consultative Committee Meeting 

Tuesday 17th October 2014, 2pm, Southampton International Airport.

7



 
   

N
O

IS
E

 A
N

D
 C

O
M

P
L
A

IN
T

S
 S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 
N

O
T

E
S
 T

O
 S

U
P
P
O

R
T

 S
T

A
T
IS

T
IC

S
 

  N
o

is
e
 C

o
m

p
la

in
ts

 
D

u
ri

n
g

 J
a
n

u
a
ry

 t
o

 A
p

ri
l 
2
0
1
4
, 
th

e
 c

o
m

p
a
ri

so
n

 b
e
tw

e
e
n

 y
e
a
rs

 2
0
1
2
/2

0
1
3
/2

0
1
4
 i
s 

a
s 

fo
ll
o

w
s:

 
 2
0
1
2

  
 

2
0
1
3
  

 
2
0
1
4
 

  
  
  

 
 

 
Ja

n
 

 
  
 1

 
 

  
2
 

 
  

0
 

F
e
b

 
  

  
 0

 
 

  
3
 

 
  

0
 

M
a
r 

 
  
 5

 
 

  
3
 

 
  

3
 

A
p

r 
 

  
 1

3
 

 
  

1
 

 
  

3
 

 
T
o

ta
l 

 
  

 1
9
 

 
  

9
 

 
  

6
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 C
o

m
p

la
in

ts
 b

y
 H

o
u

se
h

o
ld

 
T
h

e
 t

o
ta

l 
n

u
m

b
e
r 

o
f 

in
d

iv
id

u
a
l 
co

m
p

la
in

in
g

 h
o

u
se

h
o

ld
s 

fo
r 

th
e
 p

e
ri

o
d

 J
a
n

u
a
ry

 t
o

 A
p

ri
l 
is

 a
s 

fo
ll

o
w

s:
  

 
 

2
0
1
2

  
 

2
0
1
3
 

 
2
0
1
4
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
  

1
3
 

 
  

8
 

 
  

6
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

8



January - April 2014

4 Month Summary 

Complaints by Household Total complaints by area

Area

No. of 

Individual

Households Noise Low Flying Routing Training Out of Hours Total

Southampton 2 1 0 1 0 0 2

Bitterne Park 1 0 0 0 0 1 1

West End 1 0 0 1 0 0 1

Chandlers Ford 1 1 0 0 0 0 1

Bishopstoke 1 0 0 1 0 0 1

Total: 6 2 0 3 0 1 6

Summary of Complaint Category

Jan Feb Mar Apr Total

Noise 0 0 0 2 2

Low Flying 0 0 0 0 0

Routing 0 0 2 1 3

Training Flights 0 0 0 0 0

Out of Hours 0 0 1 0 1

Other 0 0 0 0 0

Totals 0 0 3 3 6

Reason for Complaints

Routing 3

Noise 2

Low Flying 0

Out of Hours 1

Other 6

Out of Hours Flights are flights between 23:00 - 06:00

9



10

This page is intentionally left blank



Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

1 

SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT 
CONSULTATIVE COMMITTEE 

 
Friday 27 June 2014 

 
SOUTHAMPTON INTERNATIONAL AIRPORT – 

MONITORING OF THE FLYING CONTROLS AGREEMENT 
 

Report of the Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy,  
Eastleigh Borough Council 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
It is recommended that this summary of airport operational activity for the 
January to April period of 2014 be noted.  
 

___________________________________________ 
 
SUMMARY  
 
This report summarises the statistics of operational activity at Southampton 
Airport for the January to April period of 2014 provided by Southampton 
Airport in accordance with the Flying Controls Agreement between the owners 
of the airport and the Borough Council. The report also compares the figures 
with those for the previous year. 
 

____________________________________________ 
 

 
Aircraft Movements: January to April 2014  

 

1. The monitoring statistics for this period are set out in the attached 
Appendix prepared by Southampton Airport. The total number of aircraft 
movements during this four-month period was 11,527. This was 715 less 
than the total over the same period in 2013, a decrease of 5.84%.  

2. The fall in the number of aircraft movements recorded at Southampton 
Airport in each reporting period during 2012 compared with the previous 
year was repeated in each reporting period of 2013 and has been 
repeated again at the beginning of 2014. It undoubtedly reflects the 
ongoing impact of the economic recession on the airlines and on 
operational activity at the airport and the particular difficulties that are 
being tackled by Flybe as it restructures its operations.  

3. As with my report to the February Committee, the number of aircraft 
movements is the lowest total number of aircraft movements recorded in 
this reporting period for many years, although figures in earlier years 
were boosted by the number of training flights in smaller aircraft. 

Agenda Item 12

11



Eastleigh Borough Council 
 

2 

4. There were no training movements during this four-month period and 
none were recorded in the same period in 2013. 

5. Helicopter movements totalled 84 during this period, 40 more than in the 
same period last year but well within the usual range for the number of 
such movements. 

 Movements During Night Hours: January to April 2014 

6. There were only four aircraft movements during night hours over this 
four-month period, one of which (an emergency medical flight) was 
exempt from the restrictions in the Flying Controls Agreement. The 
Agreement allows for up to 10 night movements in any calendar month, 
in addition to ‘exempt’ movements attributable to weather conditions or 
defined emergencies directly affecting that movement. 

7. All of the night movements took place within 30 minutes of the formal 
airport closure time of 11.00pm.   

 Conclusions 

8. Monitoring continues to show airport operational activity to be well within 
the terms of the Flying Controls Agreement. The continuing uncertainties 
in the economic climate and the difficulties faced by the aviation industry 
are again reflected in the decrease in the number of movements 
compared with the same period last year. This has, to some degree, 
been compensated for by increased passenger loadings on flights. 

 
PAUL RAMSHAW 

Head of Regeneration and Planning Policy 
 
 
Contact:  Tony Wright 
Tel:  023 8068 8245 
Email:  tony.wright@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Date:  23 May 2014 
 
Appendices attached: one 

12



EBC Flying Control Statistics
January - April 2014

Total Aircraft Movements
Total Movements Day Movements Night Movements

Aircraft Type Jan Feb Mar Apr Jan Feb Mar Apr Jan Feb Mar Apr

Non CH3 Jet 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Training Movements 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Helicopter 26 16 20 22 26 16 20 22 0 0 0 0

Fourth Schedule 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

All other aircraft 2634 2550 2953 3306 2634 2549 2950 3306 0 1 3 0

Totals 2660 2566 2973 3328 2660 2565 2970 3328 0 1 3 0

Total Night Movements - Summary
Month Exempt Month Total Cum Total 2014 0

Total Movements Non Exempt Non Exempt

Jan

Feb

Mar

Apr

Night Exemptions

Date Time A/D Type

23-Mar-14 23:27 D L35

Night Movements
Date Time A/D Type

06-Feb-14 23:09 A DH4

02-Mar-14 23:05 D DH4

14-Mar-14 23:11 A DH4

Reason

when it is 2300 - 0730Hrs (Local time).

Reg Reason

Night is defined as 2300 - 0600Hrs (Local time), except on Saturday pm to Sunday am

All Times are local time

Reg

GJEDM     

GJECI     

GJECJ     

Delayed Schedule

0

0

1

0

0

1

3

0

1

0

2

0

0

1

3

3

Delayed Schedule

Delayed Schedule

MedivacLXTWO     

13



EBC Flying Control Statistics

Runway Use (All Movements) - Appendix 6a

2014

Jan Feb Mar Apr

To/From the North

Dep Runway 02 128 72 480 615

Arr Runway 20 1221 1218 1011 1044

  

 

To/From the South    

Dep Runway 20 1201 1210 1007 1049

Arr Runway 02 110 66 475 620

  

    

Total Movements 2660 2566 2973 3328

   

   

Runway Use (Air Transport Movements) - Appendix 6b

2006

Jan Feb Mar Apr

To/From the North

Dep Runway 02 103 62 438 551

Arr Runway 20 1074 1064 894 948

Jan Feb Mar Apr

To/From the South

Dep Runway 20 1064 1067 885 951

Arr Runway 02 92 57 427 548

    

Totals Movements 2333 2250 2644 2998

    

 

14



EBC Flying Control Statistics
Arrivals & Departures from the same runway direction by main types

of commercial aircraft - APPENDIX 6c.

To/From the North Jan Feb Mar Apr

Aerospatiale ATR Series 78 75 81 80
British Aerospace Jetstream 31 84 74 78 83
British Aerospace Jetstream 41 42 58 65 56

De Havilland Dash 8 Series 713 748 886 1103
Embraer 175 86 34 34 3
Embraer 195 95 82 103 83

Mk III Trislander 76 54 84 91

Saab 2000 3

Total 1177 1125 1331 1499

To/From the South Jan Feb Mar Apr

Aerospatiale ATR Series 80 77 83 80
British Aerospace Jetstream 31 78 76 80 81
British Aerospace Jetstream 41 36 58 61 56

De Havilland Dash 8 Series 714 739 868 1087
Embraer 175 83 33 36 3
Embraer 195 90 84 101 91

Mk III Trislander 72 56 83 101

Saab 2000 3

Total 1156 1123 1312 1499

Runway use by non commercial/military aircraft - APPENDIX 6d

To/From the North Jan Feb Mar Apr

0 0 0 0C130 (Lockheed Hercules)

15



16

This page is intentionally left blank



 
Technical Working Group 

 
Tuesday 27th May 2014 

 
Commercial Meeting Room, Terminal, Southampton Airport 

Present: 
Iain McDermott-Paine  (IMP)   (Southampton Airport) 
Jan Halliday (JH)     (Southampton Airport) 
Mike Glen (MG)     (Southampton Airport) 
Patrick Collins (PC)     (Southampton Airport) 
Colin Houston (CH)     (NATS) 
David Airey (DA)    (Eastleigh Borough Council) 
Martin Lowe (ML)    (Southampton City Council) 
Tony Wright (TW)    (Eastleigh Borough Council) 
Graham Salmons (GS)   (Flybe) 
David Ingram (DI)    (Winchester City Council) 

Apologies: 
Godfrey Olson (GO)    (Eastleigh Borough Council) 
Neil Scott (NS)    (Eastleigh Borough Council) 
Dave Lees (DL)    (Southampton Airport) 

Minutes – Shona Hogg (SH)   (Southampton Airport) 

Description Action 
Owner 

Welcome and Apologies 
IMP opened the meeting and thanked all for attending. Apologies were tabled for DL who was 
unable to attend and therefore IMP would be chairing in his absence. Apologies had already 
been received by NS and GO. 
 

Review of Previous Minutes 
IMP agreed to review minutes at the end of the meeting as a couple of items contained in the 
minutes were being covered on the agenda. 

 
Noise Statistics Review 
MG took the forum through the noise statistics and reported that there were no noise complaints 
reported in Jan and Feb 2014 and none reported at the latter part of last year in Nov and Dec 
2013. No vortex reported incidents. 

 
 

 

2012 2013 2014 

    Jan 1 2 0 

Feb 0 3 0 

Mar 5 3 3 

Apr 13 1 3 

Total 19 9 6

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Noise Complaints 

Agenda Item 14

17



 

 

 

 

Households 

 2012 13 

 2013 8 

 2014 6 

  
 

    

      

 

Arr 02 Dep 02 Arr 20 Dep 20 u/k 

Jan 0 0 0 0 0 

Feb 0 0 0 0 0 

Mar 2 0 0 1 0 

Apr 1 0 0 1 1 

Totals 3 0 0 2 1 

 
DA asked what area the complaints had come in from. MG explained that anything south of 
Mansbridge is classed as Southampton for his records. He offered to breakdown the reporting 
further to mark specific areas for the next meeting. 
 
MG reported that SIAL had a new aircraft type in which was a Boeing 717 similar in size to an 
Embraer 195 which would be operating a route to Palma throughout the summer. This route 
started on 24th May and would run until October 2014. Four rotations a month. IMP reported that 
SIAL was experiencing more propeller movements at present but that this was not adversely 
affecting our noise statistics. TW raised the out of hours noise complaint which had been 
received. MG confirmed that there had been one but that it was as a result of an inbound 
landing a few minutes after 2300. 
 

Noise Action Plan 
PC gave the forum an update on the Noise Action Plan which he had been working on. This had 
been submitted to DEFRA on 28th March 2014. Initial review saw DEFRA feedback with 4 minor 
observations. These were revised and the document resubmitted on 12th May 2014. PC is 
hoping to hear by the end of the year that we have sign off from the Secretary of State and once 
this has been received this will be published on Southampton Airport’s website. 
 

Noise Contours 
PC took the forum through the Noise Contours pertaining to SIAL and reported that these 
should have been reviewed in September 2013 but as SIAL was beginning its ACP process it 
was felt that work on this area would wait until the ACP was nearer completion.  
 

 2011 2012 Percentage Change 

Number of 
Movements 

45,704 43,285 -5.3% 

Passenger 
Numbers 

1,762,978 1,694,335 -3.9% 

Aircraft type Embraer 195 
Q400 

BN Tri-lander 
Jetstream J31/41 

Embraer 195 
Q400 

BN Tri-lander 
Jetstream J31/41 

 

 
JH asked if there was a way to reflect the shrinkage which was reported at 5.3% - PC to update 
the map in his presentation to show this detail. 
 
PC will look to review the 13 contours in September 2014. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MG 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

PC 
 
 

PC 
 

By Household 

Noise Complaints by Arrival / Departure 

18



MG asked if we could identify where the households were in the contours. ML felt that the data 
tabled was a high number of people affected by noise. 
IMP questioned whether noise contours would be taken to the Consultative Committee in June 
for review and governance – JH to liaise with Karin James about getting this put on the agenda 
for June. 
DI asked when the next noise contours would be available. PC confirmed it would be June or 
July. DI suggested presenting them at Consultative Committee later in the year. 
 
Fuel Burn for Northerly Approaches & Ground Movements 
GS gave an update on his action from the previous minutes around what benefit there was from 
single engine taxi-ing. 
 
GS indicated that the Flybe estimate of the environmental saving of single engine taxi-ing and 
delayed engine start is approximately 1200 tonnes of CO2 per annum. 
 
In relation the Winchester Orbit GS said that following discussions with NATS colleagues that it 
was agreed that a track mileage saving of 14 nautical miles per northerly arrival to runway 20 
was a reasonable estimate. Depending on the prevailing wind conditions and therefore the 
arrival pattern it was estimated 1,200 tonnes of CO2 could be saved in any year based on the 
current schedule for Flybe. This would equate to approx. £700k cost of fuel per annum. 
 

IMP discussed the challenges which would be faced by plans to change the “Winchester Orbit” 
– costs are unknown, no clear indication of how long the process would take or whether it would 
be successful and a number of groups could be against any changes to the airspace to the 
north. 
 
DI feels SIAL should issue a positioning statement around what their current views are on the 
“Winchester Orbit”. WAG has engaged Steve Brine MP in this matter and he will want to 
understand why SIAL isn’t progressing with the removal of the “Winchester Orbit”. IMP reported 
that SIAL had applied for a grant / funding from Horizon 2020.  
 
DI questioned why airspace changes are so expensive to progress with. 
CH reported it was to do with the lengthily consultation process. 
 
IMP reported that passengers would need to pay for the cost of ACP whether directly through 
the airport or indirectly through their costs to airlines. DI questioned that this should be part of 
the Aviation Policy Framework. DI feels strongly that SIAL have a positioning statement around 
this ahead of it being raised at the Consultative Committee in June. IMP agreed to speak further 
with DL about this. 
 
IMP will respond directly to Robin Tice to close out the action around the figures associated with 
fuel burn / single engine taxi-ing. 

  

Aviation Policy Framework Update 
Nothing tabled as no updates to present. 
 
Airspace Change Proposal Update 
IMP took the forum through a brief background on what the ACP was seeking to achieve. He 
also discussed the next steps for the project. 
 

 
 
 

JH 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

IMP 
 
 
 

IMP 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

19



 
 
JH expressed her surprised by the low numbers of responses which SIAL had received during 
the ACP consultation. These are broken down on the next page for review. 
 

 
 
GS reported that the Q400 could fly the new approach but it hadn’t been certified by CAA yet 
but sign off by them should be in November 2014. 
 
IMP confirmed that both the Jetstream and ATR aircraft types which are used by Eastern and 
Blue Islands can’t fly the new approaches yet. DI questioned why this was; IMP confirmed it was 
down to both regulator constraints and aircraft operating issues / technology onboard. 
 
Future Approach Strategy 
IMP updated on the future approach strategy and an asset review which would take place with 
NATS to evaluate future approach strategy at SIAL.  
 
Details on the following page. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

20



 

 
 
Farnborough Airspace Change 
 IMP and CH gave the forum a brief update on Farnborough’s ACP. TW reported that NATS had 
been consulting Eastleigh Borough Council over the proposed changes. CH reported that the 
changes would affect the airspace to the SE, NE & E of SIAL. CH doesn’t feel it will impact on 
SIAL’s arriving or departing traffic. CH said Farnborough were having discussions with CAA at 
present. 
 
Any Other Business 
No further business tabled. 
 
Previous minutes reviewed and signed off. 
 
Date of next meeting agreed as Tuesday 30th September at 1330. Invite sent out by SH. 
 
 
 
 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Tuesday 30th September 2014 at 1330 

 

21



22

This page is intentionally left blank



Guidelines for Airport Consultative 
Committees 

April 2014 

Agenda Item 15

23



The Department for Transport has actively considered the needs of 
blind and partially sighted people in accessing this document. The 
text will be made available in full on the Department’s website. The 
text may be freely downloaded and translated by individuals or 
organisations for conversion into other accessible formats. If you 
have other needs in this regard please contact the Department. 

Department for Transport 
Great Minster House 
33 Horseferry Road 
London SW1P 4DR 
Telephone 0300 330 3000 
Website www.gov.uk/dft 

General enquiries: https://forms.dft.gov.uk 

© Crown copyright 2014 

Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown. 

You may re-use this information (not including logos or third-party 
material) free of charge in any format or medium, under the terms of 
the Open Government Licence. To view this licence, visit 
www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence 
or write to the Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, 
London TW9 4DU, or e-mail: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk.

Where we have identified any third-party copyright information you 
will need to obtain permission from the copyright holders concerned 

2

24



Contents 

Purpose of these guidelines ............................................................ 4 

1. The Basics................................................................................. 5 

What are Airport Consultative Committees? ................................. 5 

Legislative and Policy Context ...................................................... 6 

The Role of Committees............................................................... 8 

The purpose and benefits of consultation ..................................... 9 

2. Principles for Airport Consultative Committees........................ 10 

Independent ............................................................................... 10 

Representative ........................................................................... 10 

Knowledgeable........................................................................... 11 

Transparent ................................................................................ 12 

Constructive and Effective .......................................................... 13 

3. Effective Committees............................................................... 15 

Set Up ........................................................................................ 15 

Preparation................................................................................. 18 

Proceedings ............................................................................... 20 

Complaints ................................................................................. 21 

Disputes ..................................................................................... 22 

4. Sharing Best Practice and Knowledge..................................... 23 

Sharing best practice.................................................................. 23 

Sharing knowledge ..................................................................... 23 

3
25



Purpose of these guidelines 

1. The Government expects all aerodromes1 to communicate 
openly and effectively with their local communities and users 
of the airport about the impact of their operations. Airport 
Consultative Committees (ACCs) are a well-established way 
in which airports can engage with key stakeholders in the 
local area and beyond. 

2. These guidelines are intended to assist those involved in
establishing, running and participating in airport consultative 
committees. While the Government recognises that each 
airport consultative committee should work in a way that best 
suits the local circumstances within which it operates, this 
document sets out some particular principles and standards 
that committees can use to ensure they operate in an effective 
and constructive way. 

3. These guidelines are intended to be applicable to all 
aerodromes with a consultation process, not only those 
designated under Section 35 of the Civil Aviation Act 1982 
(see paragraph 1.2). We recognise the differences in 
circumstance between individual aerodromes and that 
arrangements and procedures for one committee may not be 
appropriate for another. Committees should determine how 
best to apply these guidelines for their specific circumstances, 
however, we expect that the basic underlining principles (as 
described in section 2) will be applicable across all 
committees. 

4. The guidance is also intended to be useful for not only 
aerodromes that have, or intend to, set up a consultative 
committee, but also those who sit on the committees and 
other parties with an interest in the consultative procedures of 
airports. 

5. These Guidelines supersede the previous version published 
by the Department in December 2003. 

1 In these guidelines ‘aerodrome’ applies to any aerodrome, irrespective of the size of operation. The term 
‘airport’ is used interchangeably in this document. 

4

26



1. The Basics 

What are Airport Consultative Committees? 

1.1 ACCs are structured forums that provide an opportunity for the 
exchange of information between aerodromes and interested 
parties. They make recommendations to the aerodrome 
management and other bodies when appropriate as well as 
being a place where there is an opportunity to reach common 
understanding between interested groups about the nature of 
the aerodrome operation in the hope that issues can be 
resolved amicably. 

1.2 There are 512 aerodromes throughout England, Wales and 
Scotland that are designated under section 35 of the Civil 
Aviation Act 1982 to provide "facilities for consultation". The 
Aerodromes Designation (Facilities for Consultation) Order 
1996 as amended (SI 2002/2421) provides the list of airports 
that are designated. Separate arrangements exist for the 
designation of airports in Northern Ireland, namely Article 
20(1) of the Airports (Northern Ireland) Order 1994. 

2 The Government is aware that the list of airports in The Aerodromes Designation (Facilities for 
Consultation) Order 1996 (SI 1996/1392) as amended (SI 2002/2421) currently includes airports that are 

no longer in operation. 

5
27



Legislative and Policy Context 

Section 35 of the Civil Aviation Act 1982 (as amended) 

1 This section applies to any aerodrome which is 
designated for the purposes of this section by an Order 
made by the Secretary of State. 

2 The person having the management of any aerodrome 
to which this section applies shall provide:-

a. for users of the aerodrome, 
b. for any local authority (or, if the person having the 

management of the aerodrome is a local authority, for 
any other local authority in whose area the aerodrome 
or any part thereof is situated or whose area is in the
neighbourhood of the aerodrome), and 

c. for any other organisation representing the interests of 
persons concerned with the locality in which the 
aerodrome is situated, 

d. adequate facilities for consultation with respect to any 
matter concerning the management or administration of 
the aerodrome which affects their interests. 

3 The reference in subsection (2)(b) above to any local 
authority includes in relation to the area of Greater 
London a reference to the Mayor of London acting on 
behalf of the Greater London Authority. 

1.3 The Government considers that the best means of ensuring 
fair treatment of the different categories of statutory consultees 
is through a consultative committee formed for this purpose. 
This provides an opportunity for the aerodrome to consult
relevant groups simultaneously as well as allowing those 
groups to engage with each other directly. 

1.4 However, the Government would not expect the absence of 
statutory designation to be a barrier to effective consultation, 
as it should be a matter of good practice at airports. 

1.5 The Aviation Policy Framework states that: 

6

28



"The Government expects all airports and aerodromes to 

communicate openly and effectively with their local 

communities about the impact of their operations." 3

Users of the aerodrome 

1.6 These will vary depending on the specific aerodrome in 
question. For many airports, passengers are obviously among 
the most central user groups, along with the airlines that carry 
them and the other associated services. Consultative 
committees are well placed to ensure passenger interests are 
represented and communicated to the airport. At the largest 
airports, having a passenger-focused sub-group might be 
appropriate to consider these issues in detail. 

1.7 As far as possible, a full range of users of the airport should be 
represented on committees, or at least their views taken into 
account. This may include, but is not limited to, passengers, 
airlines (or their representative associations), retailers, training 
schools, freight companies, ground services, as well as those 
involved in any general aviation operating from the airport. 

Local Authorities 

1.8 Local Authority members have an important representational 
role on behalf of their constituents, particularly when they 
represent communities close to or affected by the airport’s 
operations. They should represent the full range of issues 
relevant to their authority, including planning, economic and 
environmental interests. Membership on a consultative 
committee may also enable local authorities to better consider 
how the airport features in local authority plans and policies 
through the knowledge gained by being represented on the 
committee. 

Others with an interest 

1.9 The third category of Section 35 refers to any other 
organisation representing the interests of persons concerned 
with the locality in which the aerodrome is situated. While both 
the size of the locality and the type of organisation will vary 
according to local circumstances, this category would include 
community organisations such as local environmental groups 
and residents associations, local business and enterprise 
groups as well as tourism and consumer bodies. 

3 Aviation Policy Framework, 2013, pg 68 

7
29



The Role of Committees 

1.10 Committees are made up of representatives from the three 
"categories" mentioned above - users of the airport, local 
authorities in the vicinity of the airport and other organisations 
from the community surrounding the airport that have an 
interest in the operations and management of the airport. 

1.11 They should promote greater understanding both to the 
surrounding community about airport operations and to the 
airport operator about the impact of those airport operations 
and any proposed operations. Topics discussed at meetings 
can vary widely, but often include environmental issues, airport 
development, updates on airport operations, an overview of 
any passenger service issues and surface access. 

1.12 The nature of consultative committees and, indeed, of 
"adequate facilities for consultation" will depend upon the type 
and scale of the aerodrome and is likely to be site specific. 

1.13 Committees should recognise the wider role of the airport as 
an important local employer and influential driver in the local 
economy, as well as considering the local environmental 
impacts of an airport, including noise.4 They can also play a 
vital role in protecting and enhancing the passenger 
experience at airports. 

1.14 While committees are not dispute resolution forums and they 
do not have any executive or decision-making power over the 
aerodrome, they can facilitate constructive discussion and help 
resolve differences while maintaining an overview of trends. 
They also do not prevent interested parties from raising 
concerns directly with the airport. 

1.15 Although the committees do not have any executive power, 
they should be holding airports to account by monitoring the 
implementation of commitments made by the airport and 
challenging their performance when necessary. For example, 
the Government expects committees to monitor the 
implementation of airports’ commitments made under statutory 
Noise Action Plans, where relevant. They also have a role in 
protecting and enhancing facilities for passengers. 

1.16 While many committees operate to fulfil a legislative 
requirement, there are examples of committees being set up at 
airports that are not designated under section 35 which 

4 Aviation Policy Framework, 2013, pg 68 

8

30



demonstrates the value committees can have in helping 
various interests reach a common understanding of the impact 
of airport operations. 

The purpose and benefits of consultation 

1.17 Consultation has many benefits for the local community, the 
users of airports, local authorities and aerodrome operators. 
For example, it can: 

· enable aerodrome operators, communities in the vicinity of 
the aerodrome, local authorities, local business 
representatives, aerodrome users and other interested 
parties to exchange information and ideas; 

· enable aerodrome operators to identify, take account of 
and monitor trends, perceptions and potential challenges 
that may arise over time with specific groups of interests; 

· allow the local community and users of the airport to 
influence the aerodrome operator’s decision-making 
process in areas of mutual interest and increases the 
effectiveness of decisions by drawing on local knowledge 
and expertise; 

· minimise unnecessary and costly conflict; 

· allow the concerns of interested parties to be raised and
taken into account by the aerodrome operators, with a 
genuine desire on all sides to resolve any issues that may 
emerge; 

· allow the local community, users of the airport and other 
interested parties to better understand the aerodrome’s 
operations; 

· complement the legal framework within which the 
aerodrome operates; 

1.18 However, consultation is not intended to: 

· detract from or constrain the responsibility of the aerodrome 
owner and/or operator to manage the aerodrome; 

· prevent interested parties from raising concerns directly 
with the aerodrome, or through other channels. 

9
31



2. Principles for Airport 

Consultative Committees 

2.1 We recognise that committees vary widely in size and scope 
as do the specific operating procedures and arrangements and 
what works for one aerodrome will not necessarily work at 
another. However committees do, at their heart, have a similar 
role and purpose and thus can operate to a common set of 
principles. 

Independent 

2.2 While the onus is on airports to provide facilities for and 
(usually) fund airport consultative committees, it is important 
that they are and they are perceived as being independent 
from the airport in order to maintain the confidence of all 
interested parties. Committees should be free to say what they 
think on issues. Committees should, as far as possible, be 
transparent about how and why they are funded, and chairs 
should be appointed through an open and transparent 
process. 

Representative 

2.3 Section 35 of the Civil Aviation Act 1982 specifies the 
categories of bodies or organisations that should be consulted 
and it is important that a committee comprises an appropriate 
range of views that is representative of those affected by, or 
involved in, the operations of the airport. 

2.4 Committees could also consider the need for independent 
representatives, who are not affiliated with any organisation, 
when it comes to representing passenger interests. 

The size of a committee 

2.5 While the exact size of the committee will depend upon local 
circumstances, the committee should be a manageable size. 
Where there are a number of organisations that have a similar 
interest in the operations of the airport, thought should be 

10

32



given to ways in which those interests can be appropriately 
represented without making the committee unwieldy. 

2.6 Although personal experience can be useful, members should 
represent the views of their wider organisation (unless they 
have been appointed as independent members of the 
committee), consulting with other members of the organisation 
before meetings and feeding back afterwards. 

Making sure the mix is appropriate 

2.7 There must be sufficient representation from each of the three 
discrete groups identified at section 35 of the Civil Aviation Act 
1982 to ensure that the views of that group are adequately 
expressed. There should be fair and equitable treatment of the 
different categories with no one interest dominating the 
committee, however it is more important to ensure that there is 
a representative balance of interests rather than to attempt 
equal numeric representation. Subject to ensuring adequate 
representation for each group, each committee has discretion 
to decide on the scope and level of representation based on 
local circumstances and practice. 

2.8 The groups represented will vary between aerodromes: the 
users at an airport with a mixture of commercial air transport 
and general aviation (GA) flights may encompass a wider 
spectrum of interested parties than either a major airport or a 
small GA aerodrome. The scale of interest from the local 
community and local authorities is also likely to be more 
significant at larger aerodromes as the positive and negative 
impacts are likely to cover a wider geographic area. 

Ensuring organisations are representative 

2.9 It can sometimes be difficult to judge whether a community 
organisation is truly representative of the community they 
claim to represent. Organisations should be clear about who 
they represent, as well as their aims and objectives. Ideally 
organisations represented on the committee should have a 
written constitution and documented membership to help 
secure the legitimacy of representatives. 

Knowledgeable 

2.10 While it is not expected that members themselves are experts 
on every subject the committee discusses, members should 
seek to gain a general understanding of the issues involved

11
33



and should have a more in depth knowledge of the area they 
represent. All members should take an interest in the issues 
being discussed at meetings and be prepared to seek advice 
from others (such as officers from across the different 
organisational interests in the case of local authority 
representatives). 

Specialist expertise 

2.11 It is often useful, especially at the larger airports' committees, 
if members are permitted to be accompanied by technical 
advisers (for example, elected council members may be 
supported by officers). Such advisers should not, however, 
intervene in committee proceedings unless invited to do so by 
the Chairman. 

2.12 Depending on the size of the aerodrome and the subject 
matter for consideration, the committee could consider 
appointing an appropriate consultant having aviation and/or 
other relevant expertise to act as a specialist adviser to the 
committee as a whole. 

Transparent 

2.13 Committees should be as open and transparent as possible 
about the issues they discuss and the conclusions they come 
to. 

2.14 The wider local community and airport users should be made 
aware of the existence of the consultative committee and its 
role in relation to aerodrome operations as well as how to 
contact at least the Secretary of the committee. 

2.15 The existence and role of the committee, as well as members 
of the committee and the organisations they represent, should 
be easily accessible to the community online through a section 
on the airport’s own website or on a dedicated website. If the 
committee has its own website, the airport should provide 
appropriate signposting from its website. The website should 
also include a schedule of the committee’s meetings as well as 
minutes of the meetings themselves. 

2.16 Committees may also wish to explore different ways of 
communicating with interested parties (such as through social 
media or e-newsletters) that could provide opportunities to 
engage more effectively with the people they represent. 

12

34



2.17 Committees are encouraged to open their meetings to the 
public, unless there is a legitimate reason why it is 
inappropriate to do so. The manner in which the public are 
admitted to attend meetings should be decided by the
committee according to local circumstances. 

Balancing confidentiality and transparency 

2.18 There may be times where the committee wishes to discuss 
matters that are confidential in nature. This can be handled in 
a variety of ways, from closing part of the meeting to the public 
to discussing confidential matters in a separate meeting (such 
as a steering group or a sub-group). 

Examples of the ways in which committees open to the 
public 

· Some committees allow the public to attend every meeting, 
although they are not permitted to ask questions. 

· Other committees allow the public to attend meetings and ask 
questions in advance, to be answered during the meeting. 

· One committee has one meeting open to the public per year. 

Constructive and Effective 

2.19 The wide variety of issues that consultative committees can 
get involved in, and the passion that some of those issues can 
invoke in people have the potential to lead to unproductive 
meetings. As far as possible, the committee should take a 
constructive role in issues, taking the opportunity to influence 
matters where appropriate. As the committee does not have 
executive powers, its role is more along the lines of a “critical 
friend”, to offer advice and encourage the airport to act on its 
advice by pointing out things that are working well, as well as 
being objectively (as far as possible) critical of areas where the 
airport could make improvements. 

2.20 Airport managers should take the opportunity to engage with 
the committee at an early enough stage of future plans in 
order for the committee to take a constructive role in advising 
the airport and where the airport can take advantage of the 
specific knowledge and expertise committee members have. 
The airport management should be willing to be influenced by 
the discussions and opinions of the committee in order to 
make the process of consultation meaningful. The airport is 
expected to take the committee’s views into account when 

13
35



making decisions on matters about which the committee has 
been consulted. 

2.21 The airport should be clear about areas where decisions have 
already taken place or where the committee’s views cannot 
influence the situation. 

2.22 When the views of the committee are expressed in response 
to being consulted, the presence of any significant minority 
opinion should be made clear, as well as those areas where 
there is agreement. 

2.23 Committees could consider setting up an annual work plan 
that identifies priorities to help ensure work and discussions 
remain focused or publishing a short annual report detailing 
what has been achieved by the committee in the past year. 

2.24 To ensure committees remain effective they should 
periodically review both their terms of reference and their 
membership. As part of this review, committees could also 
consider seeking feedback on their work from those they 
represent. 

14

36



3. Effective Committees 

Set Up 

Funding 

3.1 The funding of committees is one issue that has the potential 
to be seen as compromising the independence of committees, 
as for many committees the administrative costs are covered 
by the airport. While there is little evidence that this is the case 
in practice, and as it is the airports that are legally responsible 
for providing facilities for consultation, committees should be 
transparent about how and why they are funded and seek to
demonstrate how independence is achieved despite the 
financial ties. 

Chairs 

3.2 One of the most important ways in which committees can 
ensure their independence is by appointing a chair through an 
open and transparent process, with the involvement of the 
committee itself. The chair should not be closely identified with 
any sectional interest. Thought should also be given to a term 
limit for chairs (for example, two terms of a maximum of five 
years), or at least reviewing the chairmanship periodically. 

3.3 It is important that consultative committees have an effective 
chair who is able to gain the respect of the other committee 
members and should have the ability to draw together a wide 
range of views into a coherent conclusion. 

Secretariat 

3.4 The Secretary should not be closely identified with any 
sectional interest. 

3.5 A properly resourced secretariat should be appointed to 
ensure the effective working of the committee. A local authority 
(ideally, not a planning authority for the airport) may be 
suitably placed to carry out this function although other 
arrangements (such as an independent secretary) could also 
be appropriate. The necessary secretarial support will depend 
upon the size of the committee and the volume and nature of 

15
37



the business handled. The duties of the secretariat should 
include: 

· prepare minutes of the committee and distribute them to all 
members; 

· issue notices of meetings of the committee and to place on 
the agenda any matters that are proper for the committee to 
consider; 

· circulate relevant documents;

· publicise the output of the committee and maintain the 
committees website (where airport is not responsible for 
this) 

· assist the committee on policy and technical issues, where 
appropriate. 

Airport management 

3.6 It is essential that the airport management participate fully in 
the committee proceedings by offering items for the agenda, 
attending meetings and by providing relevant information on 
the operation of the airport, answering questions and 
responding to points raised by the committee. Those attending 
on behalf of the airport should be at an appropriately senior 
level (for example CEO or Managing Director). 

Frequency of meetings 

3.7 The consultative committee should meet at least three times a 
year, unless the committee is satisfied that fewer meetings 
would suffice. This ensures committees can respond to issues 
in a timely manner and in a way that adds the most value. 
Members should be given as much notice as possible as to 
the time and place of meetings. 

Venue 

3.8 Unless otherwise agreed by the committee, the management 
of the aerodrome should arrange adequate facilities for 
meetings (as they have the legal duty to provide the facilities), 
having regard to travel convenience of members from the 
whole catchment. Venues should be accessible by public 
transport where reasonably possible. 

16

38



Terms of reference 

3.9 The terms of reference of the committee should be sufficiently 
widely drawn to allow it to consider all matters arising from the 
management and administration of the aerodrome. The exact 
terms of reference will be at the discretion of the committee 
but would be expected to cover existing and proposed facilities 
and services at the airport (especially those concerning 
passengers), input into environmental monitoring of the 
aerodrome, surface access, responses to formal consultation 
papers issued by government and other regulatory authorities, 
and consideration of the economic, social and environmental 
impact of airport operations. 

Example items to include in the terms of reference: 

· To foster communication and build understanding between the 
airport and its users, local residents and the business 
community. 

· To stimulate the interest of the local population in the 
development of the aerodrome. 

· To consider and comment upon the impacts of the airport’s 
administration, operation and development in relation to: 
- The environment 
- Surface access issues associated with the airport 
- Employment 
- The local, regional and national economy 
- The circumstances of local communities and their residents. 

· To protect and enhance the interests of users of the 
aerodrome, particularly those of passengers. 

· To consider and, if appropriate, comment upon any factual and 
consultative reports, from Governmental and other sources, 
that are material to the future character, operation and 

development of the airport. 

Sub Groups 

3.10 Some committees (particularly at the larger airports) may find 
it useful to form sub-groups to deal with specific issues or 
areas. This allows more detailed discussions to take place 
regarding specific issues (such as those encountered by 
passengers) between interested members of the committee. It
also may allow those not directly represented on the 
committee to be involved in an issue that affects them, for 

17
39



example some passenger sub-groups include independent 
passenger representatives who do not sit on the main 
committee. Sub-committees should report back to the main 
committee on issues discussed and any actions being taken. 
The need for sub-groups will depend on the scale of activities 
and the local circumstances of the particular airport. 

Examples of sub-groups 

· Passenger or user experience group: can monitor passenger 
facilities and procedures, identify any gaps in services or
issues arising from passenger experiences and make 
recommendations for improvement. They can also provide a 
passenger perspective on airport developments, particularly at 
the design stage. 

· Noise and track keeping group: to oversee the airport's 
production of statistics, information and complaint handling 
relating to aircraft noise and assist the airport to improve the 
impact of aircraft noise on the community around the airport. 

· Committee Steering Group: can be formed from a 
representative selection of members from the main committee 
to give preliminary consideration to new or major issues and 
make recommendations for the agenda of the main committee 
as well as deal with urgent matters on behalf of the main 
committee. 

· Ad-hoc groups: committees could consider convening a 
temporary sub-group to deal with specific issues that arise, 
such as changing the committee's terms of reference or 

dealing with a new airport development. 

Preparation 

Agenda and Papers 

3.11 If possible all members should make available to the 
committee (through the Secretary) at as early a date as 
possible details of any matter of concern to that member which 
he or she wishes to raise at a meeting of the committee. 
Provided that a matter is within the terms of reference, it is 
recommended that all committee members be able to propose 
agenda items for discussion. However, there may be times 
where a case can be made not to accept an item, for instance 
if it involves an issue that has been discussed fully at a 

18

40



previous meeting where there is no new information and 
further discussion would not be constructive. 

3.12 Papers should be circulated well in advance to allow 
representatives to prepare fully and obtain technical advice if 
necessary. The secretariat will need to ensure that the 
circulation of papers does not breach copyright, privacy or 
data protection. 

Items for Discussion 

3.13 The issues that committees discuss will vary from meeting to 
meeting and from aerodrome to aerodrome, some will be 
standing items on agendas while others will be in response to 
ad hoc issues that arise. There should be an appropriate 
balance of issues discussed at meetings. 

· Updates from airport management on operations at the 
airport, including passenger numbers and new services, 
runway utilisation, complaints, noise and track keeping 

· Updates from local authorities on local plans and policies 
that may impact upon the airport 

· Community noise and local air quality monitoring 

· Passenger service issues 

· Noise insulation schemes 

· Surface access 

· Airport development 

· Airspace changes5

· Noise Action Plans6

· Responding to consultations 

· Community initiatives 

· Updates from any sub-groups 

5 Airport Consultative Committees are listed as one of those who should be consulted with on airspace 
changes where there is potential for significant detrimental impact in the 'Guidance to the Civil Aviation 
Authority on environmental objectives relating to the exercise of its air navigation functions' 

6 Where relevant. 

19
41



Proceedings 

Participation 

3.14 Members should be given guidance on how the committee 
works as well as the standards of behaviour expected of 
consultative committee members. To ensure the effective 
operation of the committee it may be considered useful to 
have a commitment from all members, including airport 
management, the Chair and the Secretary, to participate 
actively in the work and discussions of the committee. To help 
with this, we have included a suggested Code of Conduct that 
can be used and adapted by committees to ensure members 
understand what is expected of them. 

Code of Conduct 

Respect: Committee members should treat each other with 
respect and courtesy at all times. 

Commitment: Committee members should dedicate sufficient 
time to prepare for and attend meetings, including seeking 
advice and views from others in their organisation where 
appropriate. 

Conflicts of Interest: Members should identify and declare any 
conflicts of interest (actual, potential or perceived), particularly 
where members do not represent an organisation. 

Participation: Members should participate fully in meetings. They 
should listen to what others have to say and keep an open mind 
while contributing constructively to discussions. Actions 
assigned to members should be fulfilled in a timely manner and 
progress reported back at the next meeting. 

Openness and Accountability: Members should be open and 
accountable to each other and the organisations and 
communities they represent about their work on the committee. 

Confidentiality: Members should respect the status of any 
confidential issues they discuss. 

Discussion 

3.15 During meetings it is important that members should be given 
adequate opportunity to represent the views of those whom 
they represent and that no organisation or one group should 
dominate proceedings. Chairs should ensure discussion is on 

20

42



topic while members should make their point in a concise and 
constructive manner. 

Voting 

3.16 It is expected that matters would be resolved by consensus. In 
general, the Chairman should avoid taking votes on matters 
other than those relating to the membership of the committee 
and its sub-groups. 

Minutes and Actions 

3.17 The minutes of the meeting should be concise, but 
representative of the issues and views discussed. Committee 
publications should reflect the range of views and advice 
and/or recommendations to the airport operator put forward by 
members and should not merely reflect the majority viewpoint 
on any issue. Actions should also be recorded and followed up 
on at subsequent meetings. 

Complaints 

3.18 While the airport should have an agreed formal procedure for 
recording complaints about aircraft noise as well as passenger 
service issues, committees are well placed to monitor trends 
or patterns of complaints (both noise related and from 
customers), to consider specific issues (for example how the 
airport responds to persistent complainants), and to monitor 
the airport’s ongoing performance in dealing with complaints. 
The number, and for noise complaints general location, should 
be made available to the committee. 

3.19 Passenger complaints could be reviewed by a passenger 
services sub-committee if the committee has established one. 

3.20 Airports might suggest that complainants, if dissatisfied with 
the airport response on a matter of wider interest, could 
contact the committee to raise the matter for discussion. 
However, it should be remembered that the consultative 
committee is not an arbiter of last resort, and its 
recommendations are not binding on the aerodrome. So, it 
should not be the committee's function to investigate individual 
complaints as a matter of routine. 

21
43



Disputes 

3.21 Disputes involving members of the committee or the working 
of the committee should be handled within the committee in 
the first instance. While the Department wishes to see 
committees work effectively, it is expected that in the majority 
of instances a solution should be found at the local level. It is 
the airport that has the ultimate statutory responsibility for 
ensuring the three discrete groups identified at section 35 of 
the Civil Aviation Act 1982 are consulted equally and therefore 
has an interest in ensuring committees are working effectively. 

22

44



4. Sharing Best Practice and 

Knowledge 

Sharing best practice 

4.1 The sharing of best practice and information between 
consultative committees is strongly encouraged. For 
committees at larger airports, the Liaison Group of UK Airport 
Consultative Committees (UKACCs) is an ideal way to do this. 

4.2 For committees at smaller aerodromes, sharing best practice 
on an informal and ad hoc basis may be appropriate. To 
facilitate this, committees should ensure their contact details 
are available on their websites. 

4.3 All committees are encouraged to welcome members of other 
committees who wish to see examples of other committees in 
action by observing meetings. Committees should also 
consider working together on issues of common interest by 
sharing information or ways of handling specific issues. 

Sharing knowledge 

4.4 Committees should also work with other organisations on 
issues where they have specific expertise to offer. This could 
include working with Local Authorities to inform Local Plans; 
the CAA on consumer issues through its Consumer Panel; or 
with the Department for Transport on specific policy issues. 

4.5 When responding to consultations as a committee, the 
response should show where there is agreement between the 
different interests represented on the committee as well as the 
range of views held on an issue. 

4.6 It is recognised that the Department, CAA and NATS should 
also proactively engage with consultative committees on 
issues of common interest. 

23
45



46

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	6 Airport Managing Director's Report
	stats

	12 Monitoring of the Flying Controls Agreement - Tony Wright
	140627 Flying Controls statistics Jan - Apr 2014

	14 Technical Working Group feedback
	15 New Airport Consultative Committee Guidelines - Richard Ward

